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1. Hame of Property
higtoric nama PIEROTTI, ATTILIO AND JANE, HOUSE
other names/site number same

2. Location
street & number 1731 N. Bradford Avenue N/¥not for publication
city, town _Fyllerton NI/ A vicinity
state California code CA county Orange code 059 zip code 92631
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
[x]private B ] building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
(] public-tocai [ district : 2 Q__buildings
[:] public-State [ site sites
[:] public-Federal D slructure 1 structures
D object objects
3 [¢] Teta!
Name of related muitiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
N/A listed in the National Register

._State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, | hereby certify that this

nomination D request for determination of efigibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedurai and professional requsrements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
in my opinion, the property &]meets d not National Register criteria. See cominuat

‘ -D- 7%
Signature of certifying official
Callforfr‘xg*a Office of Historic PresServation

State or Federal agency and bureau

in my opinion, the property D meets D does not meet the National Register criteria. [:] See continuation shset.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. Nationai Park Service Certification - o g
i, , certify that this property is: N ) )
I%Zaa in the National Register. ¥ational / /
. [}s« cortinuation sheet. & 7 % 3
[Jdetermined etigible for the National J 4 7

Register. [__| See continuation shest.
[Jdetermined not eligible for the
National Register.

[ Jremoved from the National Register.
Dothar (explain:)

Signature of the Kaaper Date of Action



Pierotti, Attilio and Jane, House Crange County, California

6. Function or Use
Historic Functions (entaer catagories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categorias from instructions) A
Domestic: Single dwelling Domestic: Single dwelling

7. Description

Architectural Classification Material i i i
. ! ials {enter categorie i
{enter categories from instructions) ( gories from instructions)

foundation BTick

_Late 19th and 20th Century Revivals: walls _ Wood siding/wood pergola/corrugated
_Neo-classical Revival metal over frame on garage
roof _shingle on house/corrugated metal on
other garage

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

The Pierotti House is a large, impressive two-story wood frame and wood sided Neo~classi~
cal residence constructed in 1909. The building is characterized by modillioned roof

and porch supported by paired Ionic columns, and a sweeping second story balcony with a
distinctive balustrade which extends across half of the front elevation and over the side
porte cochere. The house, inside and out, is very little altered from its date of
construction. Roof top balustrades on the front elevation have been removed and a two-
story addition and pergola were added to the south elevation in 1913. The house origi-
nally sat on a twenty acre orange grove; today less than an acre remains. Several orange
trees remain, along with a garage to the rear of the property, a pergola, and the formal
Italian gardens dating to 1927. ’

Roofscape:

The main side-facing gabled rcof 'is centered with a prominent front-facing gabled and
pedimented porticc. The underside of the enclosed eaves are lined with carved brackets
and the pattern is repeated on the underside of the gabled Toof line. Keystones, molded
lintels, fanlight windows, and dentilwork enhance the strong classical appearance of the
side-facing gables. The shape and design of the main roof are repeated in the offset
wing to the south and the large wing on the west. A cream~-colored brick chimney extends
from the center of the ridge of the main roof. One of the few alterations to the house
jnvolved the removal of a pair of six-foot-long roofline balustrades from each side of
rhe front portico. The only other exterior change was the construction of the south
wing and pergola in 1913.

A spacious open porch, bordered with an Oriental-style railing, forms the roof for
the single-storied front porch and the adjoining porte cochere. The design of the rail-
ing features square balusters with an inset pattern of criss-crossed balusters and a
rectangular inner frame. Rows of dentil trim and decorative knobs run along the frieze

below the porch roof.

Front Facade: o

Long paired fluted wooden columns, resting on rectangular wood-clad piers, support
the prominent two-story-high pedimented portico which provides an important focus for
the front facade. Ionic capitals accent the tops of the fluted columns. A wooden sun-
burst, carved brackets, and dentil trim decorate the pedimented gable. Clad in narrow
lapped boards, typical of the style, the house has a foundation covering of wide boards,
placed horizontally. The varying textures of the fluted columns, wide boards and lapped

siding provide an interesting background for the many decorative elements and bays.

L& See continuation sheet
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House

The house presents a variety of $lanted and square bays; however, the basic
system of ranking windows and entrances in vertical sets is retained. Six-over-one
double-hung windows provide most of the fenestration for the house. Fluted pilasters,
accented along the top with molding, provide the trim between the windows. On the
second floor is a cantilevered slanted bay window on the south side of the portico,
and a square bay on the north. A door opens out from the second floor hallway onto
the seccond floor porch. The first floor windows on the south side of the portico
are crowned with a wooden arch, accented with a keystone and a sunburst. To the north
of the front door is a wide plate glass window, flanked by six-over-one double-hung
windows and capped with a cornice trimmed in dentil molding. Molding-trimmed pilasters
separate the windows.

A massive cornice tops the natural finish oak front door surround, accente by fluted
pilasters. A large window of beveled glass is centered in the door, which also features
the original brass hardware. Fluted columns, topped with Yonic capitals and resting
on square wood~-clad piers, support the porch roof and the port colchere, which extends
from the north end of the house. The railings on the first floor are similar to
those bordering the second floor porch.

North Facade:

The north facade is topped by a side~facing gable, centered with a Palladian window,
accented with a keystone and flanked by horizontal louvered vents, Several six-~over-
one double-hung windows look out onto the large open porch above the port cochere.

A door leads from the central hallway inside. The north facade is dominated by the
large side porch and adjacent port cochere. A square bay is centered in the north
facade and features a door in each side, double~hung windows, and a large square bay
window. PRound fluted columns, which match the porch columns, support the north end
of the port cochere. They rest on rectangular three-foot-high piers clad in shiplap
siding.The wide driveway continues threugh the port cochere to a large parking area
and the garage.

South Facade:

The wide pedimented side-facing gable which tops the south facade matches the one on
the north facade, and is visible above the two-story wing: located on the west half of
the south facade. The wing is topped by a matching south-facing gable. Six-over-one
double-hung windows used both singly and in pairs, provide the second floor fenestra-
tion. An elongated square bay, accented with a horizontally-placed stained glass
window, denotes the location of the dining room. The stained glass window, which is
of an exceptionally high quality, portrays a scene in Venice, Italy. An original
painted door, centered with a window, is located on the east (front) side of the wing
and leads to the open porch immediately adjacent to the pergola. The pergola, con-
structed in 1913, is attached to the front of the east side of the wing and is support-
ed by fluted columns with Ionic capitals. The two-story wing was added to the back
section of the south side of the house in 1913 and contains a sunporch above and a
breakfast room below.
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West Facade:

The two-story rear-facing wing, topped with a pedimented gable accented with carved
brackets, a louvered vent, and dentil trim, extends from the rear of the west facade.
It features ribbons of double-hung windows on the second floor and single-paned station-
ary windows on the first floor. A door to the basement is located in the ell of the
second floor created by the main section of the house and the wing. Below, a door
leads to a small porch, covered by an awning. A square bay, consisting of a trio of
double-hung windows and accented along the bottom with carved brackets, is located to
the south of the porch.

Garage:

The garage is located approximately fifteen feet from the west (rear) facade of the
house. It was built for the family's first car, an Auburn, in the early 1910's. In
1919 the garage was expanted to hold a new Cadillac. The garage is frame, with a cor-
rugated metal exterior and roof. The door is not original,

Interior:

The beautifully-detaiied Craftsman-inspired interior of the house remains much as
it did when the house was constructed. The living room, which opens directly from the
front door, is 14' x 26' and features an inglenook on the axis from the dppr/ A fire-
place, flanked by built-in cabinets and benches, is the centerpiece of the inglenook.
The cabinets feature stained and leaded glass panels. The floors are clad in the
original oak flooring. The dining room, separated from the 1iving room by wocden
columns resting on wooden piers, features a built-in buffet with stained glass doors.
The large stained glass piece which crowns the buffet depicts a scene from Venice, Italy.
A large breakfast room is located directly behind the dining room and the original
kitchen, with painted wood cabinets, is centered behind the living room, The graceful
stairway at the north end of the first floor features wood paneling and curved steps.
The changes to the first floor involve the closing off of the rear half of the house
as a separate apartment. Bookcases were installed between the 1living Toom and entry
hall and a small kitchen was installed in a large closet off of the living room. The
breakfast room, original kitchen, maid’s room and bath constitute the rear apartment.
However, the connecting doors were retained and are locked when a tenant is in residence.

Tha second floor is spacious and light filled, with two doors leading to the open
porch above the port cochere and the second floor of the front portico. A glassed in
porch is located on the south end, with another in the west {rear). The house was
redecorated in the 1970's, being careful to retain the integrity of the original spaces.
The Tich woodwork in the house has never had to be refinished..

Gardens:

Mrs. Pierotti, after a visit to Lucca, Italy in 1927, designed the gardens around
the house to reflect what she saw there. The gardens have matured under the careful
management of her daughter, Leonora Pierotti. Photos 1.and 2 show the house in 1911
and 1915, before the gardens were planted. Photo 3 shows the house shortly after the
gardens were planted. The formal sunken garden, with its fountain and steps, the
border of rose bushes along the driveway, and the majority of the shrubs had been planted.
The pergola sports the wisteria which is still in existance today. The orange trees
are to the left of the pergola.
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Significant mature plantings and specimen tiees include Deodor Cedar, Redwoods, Mag-
nolias, Star Pines, Balhemias, Silk Flass trecs, Black Pines, Cypress, Juniper, Westcin
Cedars., Goulengiana, Japanese and Nortolk Pines. Gardenias and Azaleas have grown to the
size of small trees. Among the Valencia and ¥aval orange trees in the southwest corner
of the property, thirteen are almost 90 yeatrs old. Other fruits include lime, lemon,
grapefruit, tangelo, avocado, fig, plum, peach, kiwi, apple and persimmor trees. King
Palms, purchased from the Huntington Library 1in San Marino, are among sevaral species
of pali which still survive. The layout of the gardens provides for small intimate
spaces with a high degree of privacy on the north and south sides and a magnificent
formal sunken garden in the front (east) yard.
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8 Statement of Significance
Certitying cfficial has consicered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
D nationally :j statewide @ locally

splizapie National Pegister Criteria  [_1A [x!B x1c [_]D

¢ :iteria Considarations {Excaptions) DA {__:! B8 i_]c DD " le 1_:_} F EjG

7 gas cf Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Signiticant Dates
_Architecture 13209-1941 1909
. Lommerce

Social History

Cutiwral Atfiliation

- NA
Sgnificant Person Aichilect/Builder
_Mierotti, Attilic and Jane Shattuck, Charles (Architect)

State significance of propsrty, and justify criteria, zriteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.
The Pierotti House is significani under Zriterion B in the ar<a of commerce for

the association with Attilio Pieroiti. who built the house in 1909 and lived here until
his death in 1939. Pierotti arrived in the Placentia-Fullerton area in 1878 and
would play a significant role in the early commercial histery of the area, most impor:-
antly in the packing house industry and with water rights and distribution. The Piervtti
House is significant urder Criterion B in the area of social history for the association
with Jane Pierotti, wife of Attilio, who made significant contributioms in the cultural
life of Placentia-Fullerton. Pierotti was a strong supporter of the perferming arts cnd
often invited artists from Los Anjeles to perform in the community. She was a founding
member of the local woman's club and the Philharmonic Society. Pierotti ccutinued her
work in ihe cultural life of the avea wmtil she muved away in 1941. The Tierctti House
is also significant under Criterion C in the area of architecture as a very fine example
of a Neoclasscical designed residence in the North Orange County region. In quality oy
design and execution, the building is unique.

Context:

Architecture: The Pierotti Mouse is an ocutstanding example of Neoclassical architen-
ture and nc other North Orange County residence of that style can be compared with its
beauty. There are around 30-40 Necclassical residences in Fullerton, Placentia, Yorba
Linda, Ia Habra, Brea and Anaheir., but most are siugle-storied and modest in form.

The Pierciti House was a departuve from the typical Craftsman Bungalows and Colonial
Pevival grove houses being built cetwzen 1900 and 192C. Those built after 1520 wvere
mostly Spanish Colonial in style.

Grove houses were the center of the 10 to 20 acre citrus ranches that covered much of
North Orange County. The citrus industiy wes the prime industry that provided the
econcmic furce to sustain the towas nentioned abeve. The large ranch houses were a visual
statement which revealed the prosperity and fine iife style of the successful ranchers.
Fullerton and Placentia have been sntertwined since Tullerton was founded in 1887.
Piacentia, the town, was not foundes wmutil 1210, yvears after the Placentia 3chool
District was founded by iocal rancners in 1874. Local families went to Fullerton fov
their town needs and to attend hizh school. The Pierotti House is legally im Fullerton,
but the family has always considered itself as part of Placentia.

Commerce: Mr. Plerotti was one cof six to eight prime movers in the Fullerton, Placentia
area. Their names have shown up on the founding boards of almost every packing

!r_xj See continuation shea!
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house, bank, school beard, water company, communiity organizations and executive boards.
Mr. Pierotti was one of the founders of the first packing house in the arez, the Placeaiia
Orange Grcwers Asscciation, founded in 1910. The nead for the association was inspired
by the low prices paid and unfair shipping practices in existance at the turn of the
century. By banding together and forming their cwn packing, marketing, and shipping
facility. the citrus growers were able to become more successful in their industry.
Mr. Pierotti was well known for his work with water and water rights. As 2 member of
the Tri-State Conservation League, he was able to help shape early water policies and
distribuuion. Serving on the Anaheim Union Water Cempany board for several years enabied
him to be a part of Nerth Orange County water distvibution. One of the Directors who
helped found the Farmers and Merchants National Bzak in Fullerton in 1904, Mr. Pierotti
also was on the board of the Bank of Italy in Placentia. As influential citizens often
did, he served on the boards of the Placentia Scheol District and the Fullerton Hospi-
tal Association Board. He served as president of the hospital board in the early 1910°'s,
Mr. Pierotti undoubtedly provided much service to the citrus industry and local civic
organizations. He was still active in various activities until his death in 1939.
Social: The Pierottis had season tickets to thec opera, philharmonic and Shakesperszan
Players in Los Angeles. They often brought artists from these performing owganizations
to their home to perform for their friends and the commmity. Leonora Pierotti remem-
bers well the very ' large tencr from the Chicago Gpera Company who visited them when
she was 2 child (early 1920's). The local Philharmonic Society was formed in the living
room of this house. Mrs. Pierotti was a founding member of the Placentia Round Table
Club, begun in 1510, a year after the Philharmonic Society. The Round Table Club,
which stili exists teday, is part of the Federatica of Women's Clubs. Mrs. Pierotti
was on the board when the organization built their e¢lub hous:. The family contributed
$25.00 of the $175.00 needed to buy a second lot to add width to the property. Mrs.
Pierotti continued to work almost full time with her cultural pevrsuits until she moved
to the coast in 1941. Her daughter, Leonora, and son, Donald, shared the house from
that time until Donald died in the 1960's. Leonora is now the owner and occupant of
the hcuse. Her interest in gardening hss led her to spend much of her time seeing to
the preservation and maintainance of the house and gardens.

Charles Shattuck, Architect

Charles Shattuck, listed in the Biographical Tictionary of American Architects
Deceased, was a prominent Los Angeles architect for over fifty years. He came from
New Hampshire in the early 1880's and practiced in Los Angeles until his death in
November of 1944, He pioneered in the dasigning cf country clubs, and prepared the
plans for Los Angeles' first produce market. He algo designed Scuthern California's
first mausoleum and many large business structures in the Los Angeles area. He
personally supervised the construction c¢f the Tierotti house, coming from Los Angeles
at lesst once a week.




Leroi. 1, AL Lo ang Jane, iouse Ovange Coun |, vo.iiits
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Please see eviached continuation sheet

D See continuation sheet
Pravious documemation on fiie (NPS):

L _1oreliminay detenmination of individual listing {36 CFR §7) Primary location of additional data:
has hzen requestad " Tstate histeric preservation office
’jnrev’ous!y lisied i the Nationai Register {_lOther State agenrcy
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i_1See continuation sheet

Pierott,.. B L aeg,,,,n\s fm.t,y feet from the center h.ne oL Bradford Avenue and runs 170
-y

Feet west Lo The northwest corner, turns south for 231 feet, turns east for 170 feet,
and north for 231 feet, to the starting point.

(1566 continuation sheet
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The property included in the application is the remaining piece the family owns after
selling the rest of the sriginal twenty acres several years ago.

{ Isee continuation sheat
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Excensive interviews with Leonora Pierotti, descendant of Jane and Attilio Pierotti,
the original cwners of the house

Carpenter, Virginia Placentia, A Pleasant Place Friis Pioneer Press 1977 Santa Ana
California

Ciry of Fullerten: City of Fullerton Historisal Building Survey; Heritage Revisited
Cicy of Fullerton Planning Department 1979

fley, George Fariy Placentia; Its Background and Setiiers, Development, Scheols and
Mamories CGrange County Envirommental Management Agency, Santa 4na, 1986

Vulencia Hipgh School The ilistory of Pilacentia Schoois 1940

De Graaf, Lawrence, The Pierotti-Strain House and toardens Cal State Fullerton

Vhitney, Harry F. Biographical Dictionazy of fmerican Awvchitacts Deceased 1970

Fulierton News Tribune, Pierctti Family Helped Builc Placeatia 11-15-66

Siiver Amnnivevsary Edition of the Placeatia Califcrnia Courier 1910-1935
Article: Round Table Club

Orange County Iliustrated: The Duke of Orange

Daily Star Progress, Leoncra Pierotti Cultivates a (arden of Talents 9-22-88

Flacentia Courier, A. Pierotti 60 Years Resident, Callel By Death 3-25-38

Jaily News Tribune, Nov. 29, 19il1 (Pierotti elect:d to foundiny board of the
Piacentia Orange Growers Association)

Fullerton Hospital Assoclation certificate
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HISTORIC PHOTOGRAPHS:

1-
~
Lo

39

Pierouri House in
Pierotti House in 1
in 1

Piercotii House 1

11 (The pergola and scuti wiong had not bLean constructed yet)
i5 (Pergola and wing are in place)
927, soon after the gardens ware laid out,

Recent photegrapns:

Fierotti House

1737 N, Bradford Avenue

Fullertcn, CA 92631

Taken: May 1992

Photographer: Diann Marsh

Location of negatives: 17321 N. Bradford Avenue

4.
-St)

6&

13.

14.

Fullerton, CA 92631
Front Facade: Taken from the northeast; Light line across the bottom is the
central section of the circular drive.
Front Facade: Closeup view of second floor of main portico., taken from the east.
Note the slender carved brackets 1lining the eaves and the underside of the eaves.
Front Facade: The first floor trio of windows is topped witn dentil work, cornice,
carved wooden sunburst with acanthus leaves, and a keystone., The second floor
cantilevered bay is decorated along the bottem with brackets.
Front Facade: Front door, taken from east. WNote fluted pilasters and original
hardwarz. The door leads directly into the living room. across from the inglenook.
Frent Facade: Door at north end of front facade, leads to interior stair hall.
It also has fluted pilasters and heavily-detailed cornice, as well as the
original hardware.
Front Facade: the porte cochere, on the north end of the froant facade, 1s supported
by round wooden columns, topped with Ionic capitals and resting on bases clad in
shiplap siding.,
Nortn Facade: This view of the north facade is taken froum the northwest. The
porte cochere is to thae left cf the left edge of the photo. From herz can be
seen the rear sleeping porch, north gable face, corner of second floor porch, and
square bay below the porch railing.
Rear (west) Facadz: The two-story sleeping porch and first floor enclosed porch
form a wing at the north end of the weast facade. Taken from south end of house.
Rear {west) Facade: Taken from northwest, the two-story sleeping porch and en-
closed porch on the north end of the west facade. The corrugated metal-clad
garage is located on the right side of the photo {(ivy covered structure).
Intericr: The south wall of the dining room contains a stezined and varnished
buili~in buffet, accented with stained glass doors, and a stained glass window
featuring a scene of Venice. The hardware is original.
Interior: The inglenook, loca:ed directly acrcss the living room from the front door,
is the focus of the room. Cabinets with stained glass dcocs and a beach are on
the right of the fireplace.
The Pergola: Taken from the east, the pergola, ccnstructed in 1913, is located
to the south of the scutheast corner of the house.
Sunken Garden: Taken from the northwest, the sunken garden is located between the
ctreet and the circular driveway. The street is beyoud the trees in the background.
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17. Sundial Garden: Taken from the southeast. The Sundial Gazden is one of saversl
garden retreats on the property.

Additional
Taken: April 1993
Photographaz: Diann Marsh
Negatives: Leonora Pieroiti
7
t

notographs:

b ey

W. Bradiord Avenue
ertou, CA 92631

[

31
Wi

1t

A Front Facade: taken from east (street side)

B. Front Facade: taken from east (street side), slightiv to the north of phceto A
View is of norih end of front of the house and porte cochers.

C. Front Facade: Taken from northeast, with porte cochere on right and main portico
on left.

1, Pergola: taken from south side

. Garage: taken from the north side, garage is immediately to the west of the hcuse

F. West Faczade of garage: taken from northwest

As vou can see from the photos, the mature foliage that adds te the character of the
setting also restricts the view of the architecture.
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